Northeast Michigan Community Mental Health Authority (NeMCMHA) Board Board Meeting February 9, 2023

I. Call to Order

Chair Eric Lawson called the meeting to order in the Board Room at 3:00 p.m.

II. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

- Present: Lynnette Grzeskowiak, Charlotte Helman, Judy Jones, Eric Lawson, Gary Nowak, Lloyd Peltier, Pat Przeslawski, Terry Small
- Absent: Robert Adrian, Les Buza (Excused), Bonnie Cornelius (Excused), Terry Larson (Excused)
- Staff & Guests: Lisa Anderson, Carolyn Bruning, Connie Cadarette, Mary Crittenden, Erin Fletcher, Donald Haske, Paula Haske, Ruth Hewett, Larry Patterson, Abbey Podbielski, Nena Sork, Jen Walburn

III. <u>Pledge of Allegiance</u>

Attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance as a group.

IV. Appointment of Evaluator

Lloyd Peltier was appointed as evaluator for this meeting.

V. <u>Acknowledgement of Conflict of Interest</u> No conflicts of interest were acknowledged.

No connects of interest were acknowledged.

VI. Information and/or Comments from the Public

No information or comments were presented to the Board.

VII. <u>Approval of Minutes</u>

Moved by Gary Nowak, supported by Terry Small to approve the minutes of the January 12 and January 26, 2023 Board meetings, as presented. Motion carried.

VIII. <u>February Monitoring Reports</u>

1. Budgeting 01-004

Connie Cadarette reviewed the Statement of Revenue and Expense and Change in Net Position for the month ending December 31, 2022. Revenue projections were quite accurate, with the Agency receiving a little more than originally expected. Medicaid and Healthy Michigan combined are currently underspent by \$79,749. General Funds are underspent by \$185,472.

Larry Patterson reviewed expenses with negative variances. Many of these variances are due to timing issues and should smooth out within the coming months. The Contract Inpatient and Miscellaneous Expense line items have been affected by high cost stays, but those should be completed soon. With 25% of the year elapsed, the Agency has used 24.4% of expenses. Line items with greater variances may require budget adjustments later on.

2. Treatment of Individuals Served 01-002

Pat Przeslawski reported the Recipient Rights Advisory Committee meeting on January 25 went well. Eric also attended the meeting. Pat reviewed the basics of how Recipient Rights incidents are handled by Ruth Hewett and her team. Ruth reported there are no current suggestions for the Board.

3. Staff Treatment 01-003

Eric noted the total employee turnover rate for 2022 was 32%. Nena reported the industry turnover rate for direct care workers in 2021 was 64%. At least half of Agency employees are in direct care.

Moved by Charlotte Helman, supported by Pat Przeslawski, to approve the February Monitoring Reports. Motion carried.

IX. Board Policies Review

1. Emergency Executive Succession 01-006

Board members received a handout with the proposed additions to the Emergency Executive Succession procedure, which stated that after the designee has assumed the responsibilities of the Executive Director for a period of more than 30 days, they shall meet with Human Resources to discuss increased/retroactive compensation.

Moved by Terry Small, supported by Charlotte Helman, to approve the revised Emergency

Executive Succession Policy. Roll call: Ayes: Lynnette Grzeskowiak, Charlotte Helman, Judy Jones, Eric Lawson, Lloyd Peltier, Pat Przesławski, Terry Small; Nays: Gary Nowak; Absent: Robert Adrian, Les Buza, Bonnie Cornelius, Terry Larson. Motion carried.

2. Asset Protection 01-007

Larry clarified that assets under \$200 are not tracked, which could define the "material amount" as referenced in the policy.

3. Board Committee Principles 02-005

Pat stated this clarifies that the Board does not micromanage; they create Ends and allow staff to operate without direct involvement.

4. Delegation to the Executive Director

A revision was made to capitalize "Ends" in the policy. Pat stated the Board doesn't always agree, but they are respectful in their disagreements. The Board makes sure Ends are met without micromanaging staff.

Moved by Pat Przeslawski, supported by Judy Jones, to approve the revision to the Delegation to the Executive Director Policy. Motion carried.

X. Linkage Reports

1. NMRE Board Meeting – January 25

Eric reported there was a compliance report from Tema Pefok. The NMRE Board meetings contain a lot of housekeeping items and financial oversight of all the CMHSPs. MDHHS and CMHA are working to get in contact with newly elected members of congress and senators to try and get a rural exemption. Due to the workforce crisis, the exemption would allow more people with a Bachelor's degree to be hired and trained in human services, even if their degree isn't in that field.

2. Advisory Council – February 6

Nena reported the council viewed the Sunrise Side of Sara videos which show the impact of the Board's adoption of Gentle Teaching. Les Buza would like the Board to view the videos as an educational session. Nena reported Peggy Yachasz and Julie Hasse attended the Gentle Teaching International Conference last year and they presented an update on Sara.

XI. Operations Report

Mary Crittenden reported on individuals served in the month of January 2023. Doctors' Services served 599 individuals. Community Living Support Services in I/DD served 86 individuals and in MI they served 68. For the month of January, the Agency served 1,142 individuals.

Nena stated the large jump in Doctors' Services is due to now having three full-time psychiatrists, a physician's assistant, and two nurse practitioners.

XII. <u>Chair's Report</u>

1. 2023 Annual PAC Campaign

Eric successfully completed the online PAC donation and felt the process was easy to follow. Charlotte questioned how donations will be tracked to meet Nena's matching pledge of \$600. Nena and Rebekah Duhaime will reach out to Monique Francis to get a running total and keep track of the total donations.

XIII. <u>Executive Director's Report</u>

1. Executive Director's Update

Nena attended the NMRE OPS meeting and CMHA Self-Determination work group. HR continues to work on the employee handbook project. She attended a meeting with ACC to continue working on the BSW/MSW alliance Western Michigan University. This meeting also included a final discussion of staff members receiving three college credits while working for the Agency. Individual AFC provider meeting were completed on Friday. She also attended the NMRE Board meeting and CMHA rural issues meeting.

2. AFC Home Contracts Update

All individual meetings have been completed. Mary Crittenden, Erin Fletcher, and some case managers have taken the feedback from the meetings and will continue to make changes to the assessment tool. Once all of those updates have been completed a workgroup will be formed to further review the tool. This workgroup will include AFC providers from all four counties. Nena will also look at the compensation grid and will meet with another CMHSP director to see how their process is done. Nena will bring the revised tool and compensation grid to the Board to go over changes.

3. Endowment Fund Grant Awards

Staff contribute to the endowment fund via the Community Foundation for Northeast Michigan. Individual needs that cannot be covered by Medicaid dollars are covered by the fund. A bicycle was purchased to promote independence for an individual and two micro enterprises were expanded. Micro enterprises are an option for individuals who want to start their own business. Some have vending machines, one does glass etching, some people do t-shirts and sweatshirts, and there is also someone who makes dog biscuits. The goal is for the individuals to make at least minimum wage with their micro enterprise.

Nena provided an update on the Alcona County office search, and the original property being considered will not be a viable option, so Nena would like to start looking at building as part of the proposed human services complex. The Board was in consensus to allow Nena to work with Alcona County on the project.

Nena next brought the possible 3% cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the Board's attention, as this had been tabled from the January Board meeting. A 3% COLA is being sought to help account for the 8.7% increase in the cost of living. Now that staff salaries are at average, this would help keep them from falling behind again. Connie reported that with current funding they would easily be able to afford the 3% COLA. AFC homes have already had a 3% increase written into their contracts from October 1, 2022.

Moved by Pat Przeslawski, supported by Terry Small, to approve a 3% COLA. Roll call: Ayes: Lynnette Grzeskowiak, Charlotte Helman, Judy Jones, Eric Lawson, Gary Nowak, Lloyd Peltier, Pat Przeslawski, Terry Small; Nays: None; Absent: Robert Adrian, Les Buza, Bonnie Cornelius, Terry Larson. Motion carried.

XIV. Information and/or Comments from the Public

Don Haske, Presque Isle County, stated he doesn't believe it's very fitting that staff receive a 3% COLA while AFC providers are working very hard. He hopes more input is sought from the providers.

XV. Information and/or Comments for the Good of the Organization

Pat reported she walked in with Abbey Podbielski who is the Director of Clubhouse. Pat would like a presentation from Clubhouse as an educational session. Abbey encouraged Board members to stop at Clubhouse to see what it is all about. They are in the process of putting together a presentation for the Board.

Gary reported he had a man call him who is trying to track down his brother, but didn't know how to help him. The individual may be in one of the Agency's group homes. Nena stated he can leave his information with the Agency, and they can pass the information on to the individual or the individual's guardian and they could get back in contact with him.

XVI. <u>Next Meeting</u>

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Northeast Michigan Community Mental Health Authority Board will be held Thursday, March 9, 2023 at 3:00 p.m.

1. Set March Agenda

The proposed March agenda items were reviewed.

2. Meeting Evaluation

Lloyd reported the meeting started on time and Board members absolutely came away with new understanding. He stated Nena and her staff's reports were very good and most of the Board participated. He stated it was a good meeting and the reports were informative.

XVII. Adjournment

Moved by Pat Przeslawski, supported by Lynnette Grzeskowiak, to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried. This meeting adjourned at 4:05 p.m.

[signed by Bonnie Cornelius March 9, 2023] Bonnie Cornelius, Secretary

[signed by Eric Lawson March 9, 2023] Eric Lawson, Chair

Rebekah Duhaime Recorder